










































































        December 1, 2003 
 

Amendment #01 
TIB-RFP-04-02 - Parallel Call Center 

Questions and Answers 
 

 
1. Section J: (page 19) "References should prefera-
bly be companies with call centers of 100 to 500 
agents in the financial service sector." 
 
 Q:  Is the "100 to 500 agents" referring to the 
number of customers that may utilize the call center, 
or is it the number of customer service agents answer-
ing the incoming calls? 
 
 A:  The “100 to 500 agents” refers to the number 
of customer service agents answering incoming calls. 
 
2. We are a company based out of New Jersey, with a 
very large offshore call center. 
 
 Q:  Can we as a company be considered to bid for  
this RFP? 
 
 A:  In order for a bid to be considered, it must 
meet the minimum technical factors outlined on page 32 
(i.e., the call center must be in the United States). 
 
3. A request for a complete spec sheet of all your 
communications presently in working condition from the 
type of PBX you are using to the number of employees. 
Please include Voice Data and fax information. 
 
 A:  The current call center's workload is not 
part of this contract.  The contractor's configuration 
may differ from that of our current call center. 
 
4. Q: Will there be a formal conference call to re-
view questions/updates, etc.? 
 
 A:  No, questions and answers will be handled via 
e-mail and posted on the www.frtib.gov web site.   
 
5. On page 7, items D and F regarding personal work 
stations and on-site training. 
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 Q:  Will the personal work stations be an expense 
charged to your group and included in pricing?  Cur-
rent computer set-up will not suffice? 
 
 A:  All costs to set up and operate the program 
should be included in the offeror’s pricing. 
 
 Q: After "Train the Trainer" has completed.  The 
contractor is responsible for completing the training 
in-house for the purpose of training our own reps… Is 
that correct? 
 
 A:  Yes, this is correct. 
 
6. Q: Can [our company] bid a firm fixed effort in 
the manner that we typically bid in the commercial 
sector and be evaluated as a responsive bidder? 
 
 A:  We are not precluding a firm fixed price of-
fers; however workload handled by the contractor can 
fluctuate based on a number of reasons (demand in-
creases, disaster recovery requirements, etc).  Any 
pricing structure that is proposed for this program 
must automatically account for these changes in work-
load.  Pricing arrangements that rely upon negotiation 
to address changes in workload will not be considered. 
 
7. Page 2.  "Type of Contract" The Solicitation 
stipulates a cost-plus fixed fee, cost-reimbursement, 
cost-plus hourly fee and cost-plus-incentive fee type 
contracts for the project. 
 
 Q: Can [our company] propose a Firm Fixed Price 
Contract for the subject Solicitation? 
 
 A:  We are not precluding firm fixed price of-
fers; however workload handled by the contractor can 
fluctuate based on a number of reasons (demand in-
creases, disaster recovery requirements, etc).  Any 
pricing structure that is proposed for this program 
must automatically account for these changes in work-
load.  Pricing arrangements that rely upon negotiation 
to address changes in workload will not be considered.  
 
8. Page 19, Section J-21.  The solicitation requests 
references for two (2) clients recently lost.  Refer-



 3

ences should preferably be companies with call centers 
of 100 to 500 agents in the financial sector.  
 
 Q: Can we just state none? 
 
 A:  Wherever possible, the Offeror should provide 
references for two (2) clients recently lost.  We 
would prefer those references come from the financial 
sector.  If no clients from the financial sector have 
been lost, we would like references from other indus-
tries.  If no clients have been lost, the Offeror 
should state “none”. 
 
9. Page 28, Section L.9 "Written Questions."  The 
Solicitation requests that written questions be sub-
mitted no later than thirteen (13) days after the is-
suance date of the Solicitation, which is November 12.    
 
 Q: Can questions be submitted as a need arises, 
but no later than, thirteen days after the issuance 
date of the Solicitation? 
 
 A:  Yes, questions can be submitted as they arise 
but not more than thirteen (13) days after the issu-
ance date of November 12, 2003. 
 
10.  IT requirements for graphics. 
 

Q: Will there be a great deal of graphics re-
quired and what type of graphics will be required? 

 
A:  The graphics consist primarily of the GUI 

screens that will be used by the service representa-
tives in responding to participant queries.  A graph-
ics card is required on workstations for the GUI to 
work properly. 

 
11.  Will any additional forms, other than 85-P, re-
quire completion prior to being granted security 
clearance? 
 

A:  The unique security clearance forms required 
by the record keeper will be provided following con-
tract award. 

 
12.  How much time is required to process a security 
clearance application?  Will the account team staff be 
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given an interim security clearance if the clearance 
process exceeds a predetermined time period? 
 
 A:  It takes approximately three to six weeks to 
process a security clearance.  Interim clearances will 
be provided upon receipt of completed forms. 
 
13.  Can the account team staff perform any duties on 
the contract prior to receiving a clearance from the 
government? 

 
 A:  Yes.  However, no access to participant data 
will be authorized until the security clearance forms 
have been submitted and interim clearances estab-
lished. 
 
14.  Does the FRTIB intend to have the current Inter-
active Voice Response and/or Call Telephony Integra-
tion infrastructure available to agents at the alter-
nate call center or will the agents be supported by 
the existing NFC infrastructure? 
 
 A:  Both call centers will be supported by a com-
mon IVR, but will utilize their own internal telephony 
infrastructure to handle the calls. 
 
15.  Will the alternate call center also accept call-
center-related trouble calls or will all trouble calls 
come to the primary call center in New Orleans? 
 
 A:  Incoming calls will not routed by type.  The 
parallel call center will receive calls of all types. 
 
16.  Does the FRTIB want the alternate and primary 
call centers to act as one call center and appear as 
one call center to the participant and to the FRTIB? 
 
 A:  Yes.  The location of the agents responding 
to the calls should be transparent to the caller. 
 
17.  Is the referenced 120 days the period of time 
from proposal submission that our cost figures are 
valid? (Reference Section A.1 (SF33 & L.15, pg 30) 
 
 A:  Yes. 
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18.  What is meant by “Hours of effort by professional 
staff must be proposed by category of expertise?”  
(Reference Section B.3.d, pgs 1,2) 
 
 A:  The Offeror must determine what labor catego-
ries (also provide a definition of each) and hours in 
each category are required to do the work. 
 
19.  Would the contractor be traveling to the primary 
call center in New Orleans? (Reference Section B.3.e, 
pg 2) 
 
 A:  The contractor will visit the Board, and 
joint meetings at other locations may occur as pro-
posed by the Offeror as proposed in it proposal. 
 
20.  How many travelers should cost be based on? 
 
 A:  The Offeror must make that determination. 
 
21.  Is there a date that after contract award the new    
parallel call center must be in production? (Section 
C.1.c, pg 3 & C.2.a.- Table, pg 4) 
 
 A:  The Offeror is expected to propose a date or 
time frame. 
 
22.  Will the parallel call center need to reach 40% 
of TSP phone traffic by the end of the first 4 months 
(D.2.a Table) or by the end of the first year (C.1.c)? 
 
 A:  The Board anticipates the call volumes to in-
crease, and it plans to have the new parallel call 
center pick up that growth as well as the volume of 
calls that the current call center does not have the 
staff to answer.  The Table reflects the rate at which 
the parallel call center should plan for growth (i.e., 
40% of TSP phone calls by the beginning of the fifth 
month of operation), but the actual call volume growth 
rate will depend on actual experience, and the rates 
shown in the Table may change. 
 
23.  Does the RFP mean that initially the parallel 
call center will handle 20% of current TSP calls, and 
by the end of the first year, 40% of all TSP calls 
(C.1.c)? 
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 A:  The parallel call center is expected to han-
dle 20% of all calls initially, and 40% of the calls 
for the fifth through twelfth months of the first 
year. 
 
24.  The table on page 4 of the RFP shows call volume, 
by month, for the total system and to the contractor. 
 

a.  Are these expected/average call volumes and 
handle times for the agents or the IVR? 

 
A:  These are calls to agents. 

 
b.  If the volumes are for the IVR, what are ex- 

pected volumes and times for the agents? 
 

A:  N/A. 
 

c.  If the volumes are for agents only, and the 
answer to General Question 1 is that the al-
ternate call center will have separate IVR’s, 
what are the call volumes for the IVRs? 

 
A:  There will be a single IVR system, so the 
overall IVR call volumes are irrelevant. 

 
25.  Does the FRTIB expect the alternate call center 
to handle all types of calls on a full time basis or 
would the alternate center agents specialize in cer-
tain types of calls, with the ability to handle all 
calls in an overflow of disaster situations? (Refer-
ence Section C.2.a) 
 
 A:  The parallel call center will handle all 
types of calls. 

 
26.  Does FRTIB desire to see consolidated call center 
statistics for either sites, (New Orleans & the alter-
nate) or separate sets of statistics for only the al-
ternate site.  (Reference Section F.1, page 7) 
 
 A:  Separate statistics for each site will be re-
quired. 
 
27.  “The Contractor must, however, be able to handle 
total program traffic in the event of a disaster at 
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the New Orleans site.” And Mardi Gras reference (Sec-
tion C.2.a, pg 4 & Section J, Question 5, pgs 16,17) 
 

a. Does the FRTIB anticipate that response 
times will be the same as at normal times? 

 
  A:  The Board expects call blocking percent-
ages to be the same as normal times.  We prefer to 
have service levels also be the same; however, we will 
consider alternative proposals from Offerors.  
 

b. Section J states, “List of Attachments,” are 
there any other attachments?  

 
  A:  No. 
 
28.  Define “long-term disaster.”  In other words, 
what is the extent of time allowed before the primary 
site can recover and resume its functions. (Reference 
Section J, Question 26, pg 19) 
 
 A:  For the purposes of this proposal, consider 
long term to be 48 hours. 
 
29.  Where will the data used by the alternate call 
center reside for day-to-day operations? 
 
 A:  At the record keeper's data center. 

 
30.  Will the primary call center and the alternate 
call center use a single source for this data? 
 
 A:  Yes. 
 
31.  If the site for the data is down, where will the 
data reside? 
 
 A:  Assuming this refers to a disaster situation, 
the data will be at the record keeper's disaster re-
covery site (currently Philadelphia, PA).  
 
32.  What are “cognizant Government Audit Agency and 
cognizant Inspection Agency?” (Reference Section 
L.1.a.1, pg 25) 
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 A:  Those Federal agencies that the Board may 
contract with to audit and/or inspect the parallel 
call center billings and operations. 
 
33.  The first paragraph states, “the technical pro-
posal shall be in the same topical sequence as this 
solicitation document.  The Technical Proposal must 
address all requirements of the solicitation with the 
exception of those in Sections B and K.  Later in the 
second paragraph under Technical Proposal preparation, 
it states, “The technical proposal shall address, and 
include specific substantiation to support the Of-
feror’s ability to meet the minimum technical qualifi-
cations, as set forth in Section M.” 
 

a. Does the Government intend that we respond 
to RFP sections A, C, F, G, H, I, J, and L, 
some of which are for information only? 

 
  A:  The Offeror must make that determination. 
 

b. There is significant overlap between RFP 
sections J&M.  Which questions in Section J ap-
ply to which evaluation criteria in Section M?   

 
  A:  The Offeror must make that determination. 
 

c. Would it be responsive to refer from our  
proposal Section M to information in our pro- 
posal Section J, rather than repeating the same 
information in a different sequence in Section  
M? 

 
  A:  Yes, where the questions and context  

  overlap, you can refer to previous answers. 
 
34.  How long is the Train the Trainer curriculum and 
where would vendor be required to travel? 
 

A:  This has not been determined yet, although 
the training would likely take place at the Board's 
offices in Washington, DC. 

 
35.  Is the training curriculum currently developed?  
In what format is hard or soft copy? 
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A:  The training curriculum has not been devel-
oped yet, but when it is it will be provided in both 
hard and soft copy. 
 
36.  How long is the initial agent-training phase? 
 

A:  The duration will depend on the experience of 
the contractor and its agents. 
 
37.  Does training require a nesting period post 
classroom? 
 

A:  The program will require well-trained profes-
sionals to handle the calls.  The Board will depend 
upon the contractor to recommend and install any proc-
esses or follow any methods that will meet this re-
quirement, including approaches for training replace-
ment novice agents. 
 
38.  How many applications will agents be required to 
interface with? 
 

A:  There will be four provided applications plus 
the Thrift Savings Plan's web site.  The contractor 
should also provide any additional applications re-
quired to conduct day-to-day business (e.g., email, 
word processing). 
 
39.  Is the recording requirement 100% for all voice 
and data transactions?  
 

A:  The requirement is 100% for all voice trans-
actions, incomings as well as call-backs.  Data re-
cording is not a requirement since the system requires 
documentation of each call through one of the provided 
applications. 
 
40.  Are there any back office requirements, e.g. 
callbacks, faxing or data processing? 
 

A:  Yes.  Call-backs may be required.  Capabili-
ties for faxing and processing transactions are in-
cluded in the software applications provided. 
 
41.  Are there any unique licensing requirements for 
agents?  
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A:  No. 
 
42.  Are there any additional security requirements 
e.g. segregated space? 
 

A:  The contractor should provide a facility that 
provides controlled access to authorized personnel 
only and ensures that computer screens or documents 
cannot be accessed by anyone who is not authorized. 

 
43.  Because the volumes are relatively small, will it 
be possible to increase the speed of the ramp up to 
the 50% level sooner than planned so that the contrac-
tor will be able to achieve some economies of scale? 
 

A:  Since this program involves a call split, we 
will adhere to the call split schedule provided.  How-
ever, actual call volume increases will dictate the 
ramp-up speed. 
 
44.  Would you please consider using a GSA Schedule 
contract for this procurement?  This makes the 
contracting and pricing more efficient for both 
parties.  

A:  Using only GSA Schedule contracts would limit 
competition.  However, an Offeror may propose use of a 
GSA Schedule in its proposal. 
 
45.  Please clarify from (C.2.e, pg 6) capability to 
tape 100% of incoming calls.  Will all calls need to 
be recorded or is this just the ability to do so?  If 
100% are required to be recorded, is that voice only 
or voice and data?  How long is the requirement to re-
tain the records “real-time?” 
 
 A:  All calls will need to be recorded, and re-
cords need to be maintained for at least five years.  
Data recording is not a requirement since the system 
requires documentation of each call through one of the 
provided applications.      
 
46.  Section J.22.b, pg 19: Please define and clarify 
what types of audit trails to be explained? 
 

A:  Although the applications provided have in-
ternal audit controls, the Offeror should address any 
audit control items such as: Confirmation that all 
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calls are accounted for.  Were procedures for process-
ing transactions followed.  Who accepted the call.  
Who did the actual transaction and when.  Were call-
backs made timely.  Were trouble calls appropriately 
escalated to a supervisor. 
 
47.  Section B.4, pg 2, states that the Agency is con-
sidering several types of contracts for this project. 
 

a. Is the Agency expecting pricing for the 
recommended contract type as well as comments? 
 
A:  Yes. 
 
b. What is the expected contract award date 
that the Agency is working toward? 
 

A:  We are working toward a January 2004 award 
date. 

 
c. What is the anticipated go live date for the 
parallel call center? 

 
A:  The go-live date will depend upon the con-

tractor's ability to prepare for the program. 
 
48.  Section C.1.c, pg 3, states that the contractor 
is to initially receive 20% of the current call vol-
umes and pick up an additional 40% by the end of the 
first year of the contract.  How will this traffic be 
directed to the contractor?  Would it be through call 
allocation, overflow, etc? 

 
A:  This will be a post-IVR percent allocation. 

The contractor is expected to handle 20% of the call 
volume initially then ramp up to 40% of the call vol-
ume, not an additional 40% as stated in the question. 

 
49.  Section C.2.a, pg 4:  The chart on pg 4, shows an 
average handle time of 4.5 minutes.  Would you please 
provide the average handle times by call type speci-
fied under C.1.d in the SOW? 
 

A:  We do not have that information. 
 
50.  Section H.7, pg 12, states that the contractor 
must include the names of key personnel, but does not 
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indicate which roles require key personnel.  Will the 
Agency specify or will the contractor be expected to 
identify key personnel? 
 

A:  The contractor will be expected to identify 
those roles and individuals that will be considered 
key personnel. 
 
51.  Section J.5, pg 17, stated NFC will be closed on 
Mardi Gras. What is a typical call volume on this 
day(s) that should be anticipated by the contractor?  
Which day(s) does NFC close for Mardi Gras? 
 

A:  The actual date of Mardi Gras changes every 
year.  It occurs the Tuesday before Ash Wednesday each 
year.  Expect a call volume of about 9,000. 
 
52.  Section C.2.f, pg 6, discusses training require-
ments.  Does training differ by call type and if so, 
what is the training length per call type?  Will FRTIB 
also provide training curriculum to the contractor? 
 

A:  Training covers all call types.  The Board 
will provide the curriculum and train the trainer ses-
sions. 
 
53.  Would the Agency please verify that the call han-
dling application will be extended to the contractor?  
If so, what is the current application software? 
 

A:  The contractor will have access to all neces-
sary software applications which will be provided by 
the Board, but is expected to provide all telephony 
equipment except the IVR.  The system used to answer 
call inquiries is proprietary. 
 
54.  Please identify the type of data link required to 
support the extension of the application. 
 

A:  That will be determined following contract 
award. 
 
55.  Other than the call handling applications, are 
there other platforms/databases that need to be ac-
cessed?  If yes, please identify those plat-
forms/databases. 
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A:  The only other applications to be accessed 
are the Board's web site and the ThriftLine (IVR). 
 
56.  Would there be any need to integrate contractor 
applications to the FRTIB data network?  If so, which 
systems need to be integrated?  
 

A:  Contractor applications would not need to be 
integrated with the Board's network.  However, elec-
tronic interfaces would be expected to be established 
for email, document transfer, etc. 
 
57.  Does the FRTIB currently maintain a data ware-
house to support the call center?  Please describe ar-
chitecture and use. 
 

A:  No. 
 
58.  What is the current data networking infrastruc-
ture (i.e. CISCO, Nortel)? 
 

A:  The current network is supported by several 
contractors and technologies that will be provided 
following contract award. 
 
59.  C.2, pg 4, Description of Work, clarifies that 
the contractor will handle incoming calls only.  
Please identify which teleco carrier will be used. 
 

A:  To be determined following contract award. 
 
60.  Please clarify that calls will not have to be 
transferred back to the Agency. 
 

A:  In rare cases, we expect that a call will 
have to be referred to the Board for personal atten-
tion from a Board staff member (the call itself would 
not be transferred out of the call center).  Calls re-
ferred to the Board should follow the escalation pro-
cedures established based on the contractor's organi-
zation; these generally would be: agent, supervisor, 
call center manager, Board staff. 
 
61.  Are the network carrier functions currently man-
aged under FTS 2001? 
 

A:  Some, but not all. 
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62. Is there currently any network prompting or IVR 
managing the calls prior to routing the calls to NFC? 
 

A:  Yes, there is an IVR handling the calls prior 
to routing to an agent. 
 
63.  Is the contractor required to have a “hot” backup 
site capable of handling 100% of the call volume in 
the event of a disaster at the existing New Orleans 
site? If so, is there a requirement for the facility 
to be some number of miles away? 
 

A:  The contractor must be able to handle total 
program traffic in the event of a disaster at the New 
Orleans site.  No mileage requirement is stipulated, 
but we expect that the site be sufficiently removed 
from New Orleans to be considered an acceptable disas-
ter recovery alternative. 
 
64.  Is the contractor expected to maintain an 80/20 
SLA in case of a disaster at the existing New Orleans 
site? 
 

A:  The contractor is expected to block 2% or 
less of calls when covering for a disaster in New Or-
leans.  It is our hope to maintain an 80/20 SLA, but 
we will consider other options offered by the Offeror. 
 
65.  Will the agency guarantee the call volumes to be 
at least what specified in the RFP? 
 

A:  The volumes are best faith estimates, but do 
not represent guarantees. 
 
66.  How will the call volume allocation be made: per-
centage-based at the network level or some other way? 
 

A:  The volume allocation will be percentage 
based post-IVR. 
 
67.  Please explain in more detail the requirement for 
contractor to provide full electronic access to taped 
and live calls. 
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A:  We expect all calls to be taped, and we ex-
pect to be able to access from a remote office any 
taped call that requires review. 
 
68.  Please provide justification for the personal 
computer workstation minimum requirements for each 
call center employee (Pentium 4, 2 GHz, 256 MB RAM, 40 
GB hard drive, 64MB video card, 17” CRT color moni-
tor).  
 

A:  These are the minimum requirements for work-
stations for proper operation of the applications that 
will be provided for the call center agents. 
 
69.  Will the agency provide the contractor with an 
agent desktop customer service application? Please 
provide details.  
 

A:  As stated in the RFP, the Board will provide 
all software applications required to access partici-
pant data. 
 
70.  How will the contractor’s customer service staff 
access loan information? Who is responsible for estab-
lishing connectivity to the database? Please provide 
details about the database and the required connec-
tivity. 
 

A:  Information will be accessed through applica-
tions developed and maintained by the Board.  Any ad-
ditional applications (e.g., word processing, email) 
should be provided and supported by the contractor. 
 
71.  Please explain the workflow of a typical call by 
each call type. 
 

A:  For all calls, we start by verifying the 
caller.  We then access applications provided by the 
Board to deliver information and/or order materials.  
The call is then documented. 
 
72.  Please provide more detail about the agent train-
ing requirements. Will the agency provide the training 
manuals and other necessary documentation? 
 

A:  The Board will provide train-the-trainer ser-
vices to the contractor for program and application 
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training, including periodic training required for 
program enhancements.  Training materials will be sup-
plied, and the contractor is welcome to add to these 
materials to enhance the training process.  Soft 
skills training is mandatory, and is to be supplied by 
the contractor.  Soft skills training must be at least 
as robust as the current one-day program described in 
the attachment.  The contractor is responsible for 
handling any on-going and remedial training for 
agents.   
 
73.  Is the contractor responsible for the application 
support? How often are the changes made? 
 

A.  No, the Board will provide support and up-
dates for its applications as necessary. 
 
74.  Will the contractor be responsible for the toll 
charges? 
 

A:  No.  Toll charges for official calls will be 
billed to the Board as Other Direct Charges. 
 
75.  Which phone carrier does the agency use to route 
calls to the existing New Orleans site? 
 

A:  Local call routing is provided by BellSouth. 
 
76.  Has the agency considered a use of IVR (Interac-
tive Voice Response) unit to handle routine inquiries? 
 

A:  An IVR is currently in use and will continue 
to be used. 
 
77.  Will the contractor be responsible for the forms 
fulfillment function? How are the forms delivered: 
mail or email, regular or stock paper, etc. 
 

A:  Yes, through the applications provided.  
Forms are delivered by fax and mail. 
 
78.  Section C.2.f. mentions a one-day training pro-
gram by Phone Pro and states that an outline of the 
program will be made available to the selected Con-
tractor if requested.  Can this outline be made avail-
able to the bidders before the proposals are due?  Can 
you provide more details concerning the existing 
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training program?  Are there other components to the 
program?  If so, how long is the program?  How much 
time is spent in a classroom environment versus moni-
toring live calls and shadowing experienced associ-
ates? 
 
  A:  The Board will provide train-the-trainer ser-
vices to the contractor for program and application 
training.  Training materials will be supplied, and 
the contractor is welcome to add to these materials to 
enhance the training process.  Soft skills training is 
mandatory, and is to be supplied by the contractor.  
Soft skills training must be at least as robust as the 
current one-day program in use from Phone Pro.  The 
contractor is responsible for handling any on-going 
and remedial training for agents.  The training pro-
gram developed by Phone Pro is one day long and covers 
only the soft skills part of training; a description 
of the training (an outline is not available at this 
time) is attached. 
  
79.  Section M.6.A.3 states that “the Agency will pro-
vide most of the application technology.”  What appli-
cations will be provided? 
 
  A:  As stated in the RFP, the Board will provide 
the applications required to access participant data.  
Any additional applications (e.g., word processing, 
email) should be provided and supported by the con-
tractor. 
  
80. Can you please describe how call routing will occur?  
Is an Interactive Voice Response (IVR) system currently in 
use?  Will calls be routed to the parallel call center af-
ter being processed by the IVR? 
 
  A:  Calls will be routed by an existing IVR sys-
tem between the call centers.  
 
81. Is there an escalation path for calls that cannot 
be answered by the associates within the parallel call 
center? 
 
  A:  Agents in the parallel center will be able to 
handle most calls.  For those few calls that require 
further assistance, the escalation path depends on the 
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contractor's organization, but generally would be: 
agent, supervisor, call center manager, Board staff. 
  
82.  Will the communications lines into the parallel 
call center be provided by the Agency (through FTS2001 
or some other method) or should we supply that cost in 
our Business Proposal? 
 
  A:  The Board will provide the external dedicated 
communications lines. 
  
83.  Will the parallel call center be expected to 
handle other inquiry channels such as email and postal 
mail?  If so, do you have a projected volume? 
 
  A:  The parallel agency will handle only inbound 
calls. 
  
84.  Will the Agency specify the labor categories?  
Will they be subject to the Service Contract Act? 
 
  A:  The Offeror must determine what labor catego-
ries will be required to do the work.  As stated in 
the RFP, this contract is subject to the Service Con-
tract Act. 
  
85.  Will prospective contractors be able to visit the 
current call center? 
 
  A:  No. 
 
86.  Is this a small business set aside? 
 
 A:  No. 
 
87.  Is the implementation of the call center infra-
structure included in this contract or is that an ex-
pense that is put solely on the contractor? 
 
 A:  Implementation costs for the call center, 
other than those identified in the RFP and herein as 
borne by the government, are contractor expenses. 
 
88.  During an emergency would the contractor be re-
quired to ramp up employees to meet the increased de-
mand? 
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 A:  Yes.  We are looking for the Offerors to pro-
vide creative solutions for this situation. 
 
89.  Do you intend for any of the existing employees 
to work in the redundant call center or is it to be 
staffed entirely by the contractor? 
 
 A:  The parallel call center is to be staffed en-
tirely by the contractor. 
 
90.  In section J on page 16, it references "list of 
attachments." 
 

Q: Were there any other attachments relative to 
the 34 questions? 

 
A:  No.   

 
91.  Please confirm that written questions are due on 
11/25. 
 
 Q: 1. Is that by a certain time of day; and  
   

2. Can the questions be sent by e-Mail or               
FAX, or do they have to be mailed? 

 
 A:  Questions were due no later than 4:00 PM on 
November 25, 2003, and were to be submitted by email 
only. 
 
92.  What would be the purpose of travel.  Should it 
be for the contractor to visit the Board in D.C.? 
 
 A:  The purpose of the travel is for joint call 
center meetings and training.  The contractor will 
visit the Board, and joint meetings may occur as pro-
posed by the Offeror in its proposal. 
 
93.  Will the contract type and pricing structure be 
altered; and when will the amendment to reflect that 
change be released? 
 
 A:  We do not plan to alter the contract type or 
pricing structure in the RFP. 
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Attachment 
 

Telephone Skills Course Outline 
 
Laying the Groundwork to Understand Service 
 

The foundation for the tele-service training is 
built as the staff examines what they expect as a cus-
tomer and the impact that has on how they go about de-
livering exceptional service. 
 
Greeting All Callers 
 

The significance of word choice when answering a 
call is examined as well as the three key parts to an 
effective greeting. 
 
Managing the Flow of Each Call 
 

Staff learns methods to control each call and how 
to adjust these methods depending on verbal cues they 
receive. 
 
Vocabulary Choices 
 

This section teaches word-choice skills that 
build rapport, keep calls on track and gather neces-
sary information.  One of several easily remembered 
techniques, wordsmithing, details the lessons of 
choosing the right word or phrase to send the best 
possible message. 
 
Maximizing Voice Tone 
 

How you say what you say changes your message. 
Voice tone potential and techniques to use your voice 
correctly are examined and demonstrated. 
 
Etiquette Essentials 
 

Phone etiquette looks beyond the use of words to 
discover the possible messages we send when we are, 
for example, silently looking up something on the com-
puter.  What message does this silence send to the 
customer?  This section explores the hidden influences 
that affect a customer's satisfaction. 
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Survival Skills 
 

This section provides "must-have" information to 
disarm an irate caller and to keep your staff's sanity 
in check. 
 
Wrapping Up the Call 
 

What happens last on the call can often be the 
easiest for your customer to remember.  This part of 
training shows how to leave your customer satisfied 
and smiling. 
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